
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Charlotte Evans 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864210   Ebost: evansca1@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 10 Mawrth 2021 

 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod digidol o'r Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal trwy Microsoft Teams ar  Dydd Mercher, 17eg 
Mawrth, 2021 am 10.30 am. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.  .  Mae croeso i chi 
ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn 
dymuno gwneud hynny.  
 
Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei recordio a bydd ar gael i'w weld trwy wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio 
trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr 
unigolion sy'n bresennol ac/neu sy'n siarad yn ystod y Cabinet ar gael i'r cyhoedd trwy'r recordiad ar 
wefan y Cyngor: www.caerffili.gov.uk 
 
 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau personol 
a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â Deddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr a 
Swyddogion. 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/


 
Nodi - Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet. 
 
3  Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.  

1 - 4 
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt: -   
 
4  Adroddiad Dros Dro gan y Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen ar Daliadau Gofal dibreswyl.  

5 - 16 
 

5  Cyhoeddi Data Bwlch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau 2020 – Rheoliadau Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 
(Dyletswyddau Penodol ac Awdurdodau Cyhoeddus) 2017 
  

17 - 26 
 

 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 S. Cook, N. George, C.J. Gordon, P.A. Marsden, S. Morgan, L. Phipps, J. Ridgewell, Mrs E. Stenner a 
R. Whiting,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  
01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


Dyddiad 
cyfarfod y 
Cabinet 

Teitl Materion Allweddol Awdur Aelod 
Cabinet 

17/03/2021 
10:30 

Bwlch cyflog rhwng y 
rhywiau 

Y Tîm Rheoli Corfforaethol a'r 
Cabinet i gytuno ar yr 
adroddiad Bwlch Cyflog rhwng 
y Rhywiau y mae'n rhaid ei 
gyhoeddi erbyn 31 Mawrth 

Donovan, 
Lynne; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Gordon, 
Colin J 

17/03/2020 
10:30 

Adroddiad interim 
gan y Grŵp Gorchwyl 
a Gorffen ar Daliadau 
Gofal Dibreswyl 

Argymell i Aelodau eu bod yn 
gofyn i'r Cabinet estyn y 
cynnydd cyfredol yn y gyfradd 
ar gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 
2021/22.   Byddai hyn yn 
caniatáu i'r Grŵp Gorchwyl a 
Gorffen barhau gyda'i 
ymchwiliad a drafftio 
argymhellion ar gyfer 
ystyriaeth y Cabinet ar 
daliadau Gofal Dibreswyl o 
2022/23 ymlaen 

Jacques, 
Mark; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Cook, 
Shayne; 

24/03/2021 
10:30 

Fferm Wynt Pen 
March - Cyfle i'r 
Cyngor Buddsoddi 

Mae'r Cyngor wedi cael cyfle i 
gymryd diddordeb masnachol 
mewn prosiect fferm wynt sy'n 
cael ei ddatblygu gan RWE 
Renewables ar dir i'r gogledd o 
Rymni. Er mwyn i RWE 
archwilio opsiynau 
partneriaeth yn fanylach, 
maen nhw am i'r Cyngor 
ymrwymo i Femorandwm Cyd-
ddealltwriaeth nad yw'n 
gyfreithiol rwymol. 

Dallimore, 
Allan; Kyte, 
Rhian; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Morgan, 
Sean; 

24/03/2021 
10:30 

Papur Gwyn ar Ail-
gydbwyso Gofal a 
Chymorth 

Rhannu cynnig Papur Gwyn 
Llywodraeth Cymru ar Ail-
gydbwyso Gofal a Chymorth a 
cheisio barn Aelodau mewn 
perthynas ag ymateb i'r 
ymgynghoriad 

Street, 
Dave; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Cook, 
Shayne; 

24/03/2021 
10:30 

Adroddiad 
Cydraddoldeb 
Blynyddol 2019/20  

Ceisio cymeradwyaeth y 
Cabinet o ran yr Adroddiad 
Cydraddoldeb Blynyddol 
2019/20 statudol sy'n darparu 
diweddariad ar y cynnydd a 
wnaed yn ystod y flwyddyn 
ariannol 2019/20 yn erbyn y 
targedau yng Nghynllun 
Strategol Cydraddoldeb 2016-
2020 y Cyngor. 

Cullinane, 
Anwen; 
Peters, 
Kathryn; 
Richards, 
Sue; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Stenner, 
Eluned; 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



24/03/2021 
10:30 

Taliadau Meysydd 
Parcio 

Diweddaru'r Cabinet ar y 
safbwynt diweddaraf o ran yr 
effaith economaidd ar ganol 
trefi a achosir gan bandemig y 
coronafeirws ac argymell 
cymorth i'r economi lleol a 
pharcio am ddim pellach. 
 

Williams, 
Mark S; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Ridgewell, 
John; 

24/03/2021 
10:30 

Ness Tar - Cytundeb 
Benthyciad 
Llywodraeth Cymru 

Ystyried gofynion benthyciad 
LlC 

Kyte, 
Rhian;Willia
ms, Mark S; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Morgan, 
Sean; 

24/03/2021 
10:45 

Adolygiad o'r Polisi 
Cwynion 
Corfforaethol a Pholisi 
Ymddygiad 
Annerbyniol 

Adolygu a chymeradwyo'r 
Polisi Pryderon a Chwynion 
newydd sydd wedi'i seilio ar 
ddogfen enghreifftiol a 
gyhoeddwyd gan yr 
Ombwdsmon ynghyd ag 
adolygu’r Polisi presennol ar 
gyfer delio â gweithredoedd 
Annerbyniol, Parhaus ac 
Afresymol gan Achwynwyr. 
 

Lane, Lisa; Y 
Cynghorydd 
Stenner, 
Eluned; 

07/04/2021 
10:30 

Gweithio Hyblyg – 
Adroddiad Diweddaru 

Cabinet i ystyried cynigion ar 
gyfer camau nesaf ffrydiau 
gwaith yr Adolygiad 
Corfforaethol Gweithio Hyblyg 

Lloyd, 
Marcus; 
Edmunds, 
Richard 
(Ed); 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Gordon, 
Colin J; 

07/04/2021 
10:30 

Band B y Rhaglen 
Ysgolion ac Addysg ar 
gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif - 
Adroddiad 
Gwrthwynebu 
Statudol ar gyfer 
Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm 
Gwyddon 

Ystyried canlyniad y broses 
Ymgynghori Statudol a'r 
argymhellion o ran y cynnig i 
adleoli ac ehangu ar YGG Cwm 
Gwyddon 
  
  

West, 
Andrea; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Whiting, 
Ross; 

07/04/2021 
10:30 

Band B y Rhaglen 
Ysgolion ac Addysg ar 
gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif  
- Adroddiad 
Gwrthwynebu 
Statudol ar gyfer 
Ysgol a Chanolfan 
Adnoddau Cae'r 
Drindod 

Ystyried canlyniad y broses 
Ymgynghori Statudol a'r 
argymhellion o ran yr ehangiad 
arfaethedig i Ysgol Arbennig 
Cae'r Drindod 
   

West, 
Andrea; 

 Whiting, 
Ross; 

07/04/2021 
10:30 

Adolygiad o 
Wasanaethau 
Gwastraff - 
Trefniadau Rheoli 
Contractau 

Ystyried cynigion i gryfhau 
trefniadau rheoli contractau o 
fewn Gwasanaethau Gwastraff 

Harris, 
Stephen R; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Ridgewell, 
John; 

Page 2



07/04/2021 
10:30 

Band B y Rhaglen 
Ysgolion a Cholegau 
ar gyfer yr 21ain 
Ganrif ac Addysg - 
Cynnig Cam 2 ar gyfer 
Ysgol Gynradd 
Plasyfelin  

Ceisio barn aelodau ar y cam 
nesaf obrosiectau Band B yr  
Ysgolion ar gyfer yr 21ain 
Ganrif er mwyn symud ymlaen 
i gyflwyno Achos Busnes i 
Lywodraeth Cymru. 

West, 
Andrea; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Whiting, 
Ross; 

07/04/2021 
10:30 

Band B y Rhaglen 
Ysgolion ac Addysg ar 
gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif  
- Cam 2 Ysgol Iau 
Llancaeach ac Ysgol 
Fabanod Llanfabon 

Ceisio barn aelodau ar y cam 
nesaf obrosiectau Band B yr 
Ysgolion ar gyfer yr 21ain 
Ganrif er mwyn symud ymlaen 
i gyflwyno Achos Busnes i 
Lywodraeth Cymru. 

West, 
Andrea; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Whiting, 
Ross; 

07/04/2021 
10:30 

Band B y Rhaglen 
Ysgolion ac Addysg ar 
gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif  
- Cynnig Cam 2 ar 
gyfer Canolfan ar 
gyfer Dysgwyr Agored 
i Niwed 

Ceisio barn aelodau ar y cam 
nesaf obrosiectau Band B yr  
Ysgolion ar gyfer yr 21ain 
Ganrif er mwyn symud ymlaen 
i gyflwyno Achos Busnes i 
Lywodraeth Cymru. 

West, 
Andrea; 

 Whiting, 
Ross; 

07/04/2021 
10:30 

Adolygiad Fflyd - 
Diweddariad 

Diweddaru'r Cabinet ar 
gynnydd yr adolygiad 
gwasanaeth o fflyd y Cyngor 
hyd yn hyn 

Cooke, Paul; 
Richards, 
Sue; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Ridgewell, 
John; 

21/04/2021 
10:30 

Cynllun Busnes y 
Gwasanaeth Cyflawni 
Addysg 2021-22 

Rhaid i'r Gwasanaeth Cyflawni 
Addysg gyflwyno Cynllun 
Busnes rhanbarthol blynyddol 
cyffredinol ar sail flynyddol.  
Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn gofyn 
i aelodau ystyried cynnwys 
llawn Cynllun Busnes drafft y 
Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg 
fel rhan o'r broses ymgynghori 
ranbarthol. 
 

Cole, Keri; Y 
Cynghorydd 
Whiting, 
Ross; 

21/04/2021 
10:30 

Rhaglen Trawsnewid 
Tîm Caerffili - 
Diweddariad 6 mis 

Rhoi diweddariad i aelodau ar 
gynnydd yn erbyn Strategaeth 
Trawsnewid Tîm Caerffili 
  

Richards, 
Sue; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Stenner, 
Eluned; 

21/04/2021 
10:30 

Asesiad Perfformiad 
Corfforaethol - 
Chwarter 1/Chwarter 
2 

Rhoi diweddariad perfformiad 
lefel uchel i'r Cabinet o'r 
Cyngor (o Ebrill - Medi 2020) 
yn seiliedig ar yr wybodaeth 
gan Asesiadau Perfformiad y 
Gyfadran am yr un cyfnod. 

Roberts, 
Ros; 
Richards, 
Sue; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Stenner, 
Eluned; 

Page 3



21/04/2021 
10:30 

Diweddariad y Bwrdd 
Prosiect Adfywio 

Argymell dyrannu Cronfa 
Datblygu'r Bwrdd Prosiect 
Adfywio, gwerth hyd at £107 
mil, tuag at brosiect a 
gymeradwywyd ac a 
werthuswyd yn ddiweddar a 
nodi dyraniad Cyllid Trwydded 
i Arloesi ar gyfer Coffi Vista, 
Caerffili.  
Ystyried dyrannu cyllid 
ychwanegol ar gyfer y Bwrdd 
Prosiect Adfywio 
 

Kyte, Rhian; Y 
Cynghorydd 
Morgan, 
Sean; 

21/04/2021 
10:30 

Ffordd Coedwig 
Cwmcarn 

Ystyried dull cydweithredol 
arfaethedig gyda Chyfoeth 
Naturiol Cymru i alluogi ailagor 
y Ffordd Coedwig 

Hudson, 
Paul; Kyte, 
Rhian; 

Y 
Cynghorydd 
Morgan, 
Sean; 

 

Page 4



 
 

SPECIAL CABINET – 17TH MARCH 2021 
 
SUBJECT: INTERIM REPORT FROM TASK AND FINISH GROUP ON NON-

RESIDENTIAL CARE CHARGES 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To update Members of the Cabinet on the Task and Finish inquiry into charging for 

non-residential social care within the county borough. This inquiry is being carried out 
by a sub-group of the Social Services Scrutiny Committee and they held their initial 
meeting on 25th September 2019. 

 
1.2 To recommend to Cabinet that it extends the current rate increases for the 2021/22 

financial year. This would allow the Task and Finish group to continue their inquiry 
and to draft recommendations for Cabinet consideration on the charge for non-
residential care from 2022/23 onwards.   

 
 

2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The report will give a brief summary of information received by Members of the Task 

Group thus far, and outline how disruption caused by the Covid-19 pandemic has 
meant that final recommendations have not yet been reached and therefore cannot be 
applied to the rates for the 2021/22 financial year. 

 
2.2 The report will give a synopsis on the background to the current Task and Finish inquiry 

into charging for non-residential care within the county borough.  
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That Cabinet extends the decision to increase non-residential charges by 10% per 

annum for hourly rates and 20% per annum for daily rates for a further year in to the 
2021/22 financial year. The Task and Finish group on Non-Residential Care charges 
would then make recommendations for Cabinet consideration on the charge from 
2022/23 onwards.     

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To allow the revised charges for non-residential care to be applied for 2021/22 and the 

continuation of the ongoing Task and Finish inquiry into charging for non-residential 

Page 5

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4



care within the county borough.  
 
 
5. SCRUTINY COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 
5.1 This report came before the Social Services Scrutiny Committee on Tuesday 2nd 

February 2021. 
 
5.2 The Scrutiny Officer (Mark Jacques) advised Members that in essence the report was 

requesting an extension from Cabinet so that the Task Group could continue its inquiry 
into charging for non-residential care. Members heard how due to severe disruption 
caused by the Covid-19 pandemic the group was currently not in a position to make 
recommendations for 2021/22, which was the original intention as set out in the group’s 
Terms of Reference.  

 
5.3 The Scrutiny Officer outlined how the Task Group had met on two occasions since 

September 2019 and advised that planned consultation in early 2020 had to be 
abandoned due to the pandemic. 

 
5.4 The Chair of the Task and Finish Group (Cllr Vincent James) reiterated that at this 

stage it had not been possible for the group to make any recommendations on the 
charging policy. He advised Members that the group intended to reconvene later that 
month in order to receive opinions from expert witnesses. The Task Group Chair 
outlined to Members the importance of ensuring that service users were not dissuaded 
from accessing services because of charges.  

 
5.5 One Member asked for an update on the charges made by other Local Authorities in 

Wales for this type of social care and how the charges by Caerphilly County Borough 
Council compared with those made by other Councils. The Interim Financial Services 
Manager (Mike Jones) was able to advise Members that according to figures for 
2019/20 only three Local Authorities out of 22 had lower hourly rates than those 
charged within the Caerphilly borough, and only one authority had a lower charge in 
terms of the daily rates for non-residential care.    

 
5.6  Following consideration and discussion the Social Services Scrutiny Committee by a 

majority present, and in noting in that there were no abstentions and no votes against, 
RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report, Cabinet be 
requested to extend the decision to increase non-residential charges by 10% per 
annum for hourly rates and 20% per annum for daily rates for a further year, into the 
2021/22 financial year.  The Task and Finish Group on Non-Residential Care charges 
would then make recommendations for Cabinet consideration on the charge from 
2022/23 onwards. 

          
 
6. THE REPORT 
 
6.1 Previously a cross party members task and finish group consisting of scrutiny 

members was established to examine the requirements and impact of charging for 
non-residential services, the services that had a charge and the application of 
charges and disregards. The findings of the task and finish group were presented to 
the Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee on 26th March 2013, and 
an annual increase of 10% per hour for home care and supported living and an 
annual increase of 20% per day for day care services was endorsed and 
recommended to Cabinet. These increases were to be reviewed after 5 years.  

 

Page 6



6.2 On the 5th February 2019 a Non-Residential Social Services Charging report came 
before the Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee. It was endorsed 
and recommended to Cabinet that the level of charges for non-residential care for 
2019/20 and the subsequent financial year continue to increase by 10% per annum 
for home care and supported living and by 20% per annum for day care services and 
be subject to review by a Task and Finish Group thereafter.     

 
6.3 The terms of reference for this Task and Finish Group is: To consider the level of 

inflationary uplift and minimum charging levels that should be applied to non-
residential care charges in the 2021/22 financial year and in subsequent financial 
years. 

 
6.4 The Task and Finish Group on non-residential care charges met for the first time on 

25th September 2019. A second meeting of the Task and Finish Group took place on 
7th November 2019.    

 
6.5 At the initial meeting the Interim Financial Services Manager advised the Group that 

just under £11M of the Adult Services budget came as a result of charging service 
users in 2018/19. The section of this figure that came as a result of Non-Residential 
Charging income was £2.865M. 

 
6.6 The group were given an introduction to the legal framework for charging which was 

set out in the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2015 and its supporting 
Regulations. Section 59 of the Act gives the power to impose charges. The 
presentation to Members focussed specifically on the Regulations on Financial 
Assessment and Charging. It was explained that under Care and Support 
Regulations there was a legal requirement for the Council to disregard the value of 
the service user’s main home when calculating the available income for charging for 
non-residential care. Earnings from employment and other specified sources of 
income were also disregarded under the legislation, but certain capital assets could 
be included to reach the available income for charging figure. It was also pointed out 
that the current maximum weekly charge for non-residential care and support was 
£90 per week. This maximum weekly charge has since been increased by Welsh 
Government to £100 for the current financial year. 

 
6.7 Members heard how a buffer is added to the personal allowance and pension 

premium to calculate the Minimum Income Amount which is an amount disregarded 
as part of the financial assessment to cover the individual’s expenditure such as 
utility bills.   Officers also advised Members that Caerphilly County Borough Council 
applies an additional 10% buffer across the board, on top of the statutory figure of 
35%, to allow for any additional Disability Related Expenditure and therefore to avoid 
any dispute.  This Minimum Income Amount is disregarded when calculating an 
available income for charging purposes. 

 
6.8 Members were advised that even with the increases of 10% per annum for hourly 

rates and 20% per annum for daily charges for the past 6 years, Caerphilly County 
Borough Council was in the lower quartile of Standard Charges for all Welsh local 
authorities. 

 
6.9 The weekly charge was determined based on the lower of (i) the standard charge, (ii) 

the maximum weekly charge and (iii) available income. The Task Group heard how 
under this assessment process nobody is expected to pay more than they can afford. 

 
6.10 At the first meeting of the Task Group the possibility of having to draft an Interim 

Report requesting that the current increase be extended for the 2021/22 financial 

Page 7



year was discussed by Members. This was due to timescale issues.   
 
6.11 The second meeting of the Task and Finish Group on non-residential care charges 

took place on 7th November 2019.   
 
6.12 During a presentation Members were shown a graphic outlining the number of people 

accessing services charged for on an hourly rate. It was explained to Members that 
of the 1,167 service users in the County Borough, it was only the 216 people paying 
full standard charges who would be affected by any future increases in charges for 
this type of non-residential social care. Therefore, based on figures as at 30th 
September 2019, the vast majority of care recipients are unaffected by a charge 
increase. 

 
6.13 Members asked about the charging policy for the Telecare Service. The Interim 

Financial Services Manager advised that there was a charge for this service but that 
it was not included as part of charges for non-residential social care. Officers outlined 
that Telecare had now been adopted by the Social Services department, but 
previously had been administered by Housing Services. Discussion ensued on the 
possible impact of incorporating Telecare into the package of non-residential social 
care services. It was generally acknowledged that this would require further 
consideration and should possibly be considered as part of a future review. 

 
6.14 At the second meeting Members agreed to consultation suggestions such as 

engaging with stakeholders via GAVO (Gwent Association of Voluntary 
Organisations). Contact was also made directly with associated organisations such 
as Age Cymru and Disability Rights UK. Subsequently, this consultation process 
proved challenging due to a lack of engagement from organisations. A Stakeholder 
Engagement Session scheduled for 27th February 2020 had to be cancelled due to a 
lack of interest. Planned face-to-face consultation sessions at events organised by 
Caerphilly People First also had to be cancelled following the national lockdown 
because of the Covid-19 pandemic in March 2020.      

 
6.15 Plans to restart the inquiry with an evidence gathering meeting via Microsoft Teams 

were made during Autumn, 2020. The Wales School for Social Care Research in 
Swansea, and Social Care Wales were both approached and a Social Care 
Management expert from the University of South Wales agreed to speak to the Task 
and Finish group on 30th November 2020. But this session had to be cancelled due to 
a family bereavement. This session is rescheduled for February 2021.            
          

 
 

6.16 Conclusion   

Due to disruption caused by the Covid-19 pandemic the Task and Finish group are 
not in a position to make recommendations on the application of charges for non-
residential care for the 2021/22 financial year. It is therefore recommended that 
Cabinet extends the current increase for this period and that the Task and Finish 
inquiry continues in order to make recommendations for Cabinet consideration on the 
charge from 2022/23 onwards.   
 

7. ASSUMPTIONS 

7.1 No related assumptions have been felt to be necessary in relation to this report.   

Page 8



 
8.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
8.1       The operation of scrutiny is required by the Local Government Act 2000. The Local 

Government Wales Measure 2011 and subsequent Statutory Guidance include 
requirements to publicise the work of scrutiny committees. 

 
8.2 Corporate Plan 2018-2023.   

 
This report contributes to the following Corporate Well-being Objectives:  
 
Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in 
accordance with the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being. 

 
 
9. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
9.1 This report contributes to the following Well-being goals: -  

 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 
 
 
10. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1  This report is for information purposes only, so the council’s full Equalities Impact 

Assessment process does not need to be applied.  
 
 
11. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no financial implications with respect to this report. There are no budget 

shortfall considerations as the report recommends retaining current annual 
percentage increases for non-residential care.   

 
 
12. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no personnel implications with respect to this report.  
 
 
13. CONSULTATIONS 
 
13.1 All responses from the consultations have been incorporated in the report. 
 
 
14. STATUTORY POWER  
 
14.1 The Local Government Act 2000. 
 Social Care and Well-Being (Wales) Act 2015  
 
 

Page 9



15. URGENCY (CABINET ITEMS ONLY) 
 
15.1 Non-urgent, but would need to be considered prior to setting the 2021/22 rates for 

non-residential care. 
 
 
 
Author:        Mark Jacques, Scrutiny Officer – jacqum@caerphilly.gov.uk  
 
Consultees: Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services 
 Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate 

Services 
 Jo Williams, Assistant Director Adult Services 
 Mike Jones, Financial Services Manager  
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/ Monitoring Officer 
 Lisa Lane, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer, 

Legal Services 
        Councillor Lyndon Binding, Chair of Social Services Scrutiny Committee 

Councillor Carmen Bezzina, Vice Chair of Social Services Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 -  Non-Residential Social Services Charging report - Health, Social Care 

and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee: 5th February 2019. 
 
 
 

Page 10



Appendix 1 

 
 
 

SOCIAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  
2ND FEBRUARY 2021 

 

SUBJECT: INTERIM REPORT FROM TASK AND FINISH GROUP ON 
NON-RESIDENTIAL CARE CHARGES 

 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To update Members of the Social Services Scrutiny Committee on the Task and 

Finish inquiry into charging for non-residential social care within the county borough. 
This inquiry is being carried out by a sub-group of the Committee and they held their 
initial meeting on 25th September 2019. 

 
1.2 To recommend to Members that they request that Cabinet extends the current rate 

increases for the 2021/22 financial year. This would allow the Task and Finish group 
to continue their inquiry and to draft recommendations for Cabinet consideration on 
the charge for non-residential care from 2022/23 onwards.   

 
 

2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The report will give a brief summary of information received by Members of the Task 

Group thus far, and outline how disruption caused by the Covid-19 pandemic has 
meant that final recommendations have not yet been reached and therefore cannot be 
applied to the rates for the 2021/22 financial year. 

 
2.2 The report will give a synopsis on the background to the current Task and Finish inquiry 

into charging for non-residential care within the county borough.  
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That the Social Services Scrutiny Committee request that Cabinet extends the decision 

to increase non-residential charges by 10% per annum for hourly rates and 20% per 
annum for daily rates for a further year in to the 2021/22 financial year. The Task and 
Finish group on Non-Residential Care charges would then make recommendations for 
Cabinet consideration on the charge from 2022/23 onwards.     

 
 

Page 11



Appendix 1 

4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To allow the revised charges for non-residential care to be applied for 2021/22 and the 

continuation of the ongoing Task and Finish inquiry into charging for non-residential 
care within the county borough.  

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The Task and Finish Group on non-residential care charges met for the first time on 

25th September 2019.  
 
5.2 At this initial meeting the Interim Financial Services Manager advised the Group that 

just under £11M of the Adult Services budget came as a result of charging service 
users in 2018/19. The section of this figure that came as a result of Non-Residential 
Charging income was £2.865M. 

 
5.3 The group were given an introduction to the legal framework for charging which was 

set out in the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2015 and its supporting 
Regulations. Section 59 of the Act gives the power to impose charges. The 
presentation to Members focussed specifically on the Regulations on Financial 
Assessment and Charging. It was explained that under Care and Support 
Regulations there was a legal requirement for the Council to disregard the value of 
the service user’s main home when calculating the available income for charging for 
non-residential care. Earnings from employment and other specified sources of 
income were also disregarded under the legislation, but certain capital assets could 
be included to reach the available income for charging figure. It was also pointed out 
that the current maximum weekly charge for non-residential care and support was 
£90 per week. This maximum weekly charge has since been increased by Welsh 
Government to £100 for the current financial year. 

 
5.4 Members heard how a buffer is added the personal allowance and pension premium 

to calculate the Minimum Income Amount which is an amount disregarded as part of 
the financial assessment to cover the individual’s expenditure such as utility 
bills.   Officers also advised Members that Caerphilly County Borough Council 
applies an additional 10% buffer across the board, on top of the statutory figure of 
35%, to allow for any additional Disability Related Expenditure and therefore to avoid 
any dispute.  This Minimum Income Amount is disregarded when calculating an 
available income for charging purposes. 

 
5.5 Members were advised that even with the increases of 10% per annum for hourly 

rates and 20% per annum for daily charges for the past 6 years, Caerphilly County 
Borough Council was in the lower quartile of Standard Charges for all Welsh local 
authorities. 

 
5.6 The weekly charge was determined based on the lower of (i) the standard charge, (ii) 

the maximum weekly charge and (iii) available income. The Task Group heard how 
under this assessment process nobody is expected to pay more than they can afford. 

 
5.7 At the first meeting of the Task Group the possibility of having to draft an Interim 

Report requesting that the current increase be extended for the 2021/22 financial 
year was discussed by Members. This was due to timescale issues.   

 
5.8 The second meeting of the Task and Finish Group on non-residential care charges 

took place on 7th November 2019.   

Page 12



Appendix 1 

5.9 During a presentation Members were shown a graphic outlining the number of people 
accessing services charged for on an hourly rate. It was explained to Members that 
of the 1,167 service users in the County Borough, it was only the 216 people paying 
full standard charges who would be affected by any future increases in charges for 
this type of non-residential social care. Therefore, based on figures as at 30th 
September 2019, the vast majority of care recipients are unaffected by a charge 
increase. 

 
5.10 Members asked about the charging policy for the Telecare Service. The Interim 

Financial Services Manager advised that there was a charge for this service but that 
it was not included as part of charges for non-residential social care. Officers outlined 
that Telecare had now been adopted by the Social Services department, but 
previously had been administered by Housing Services. Discussion ensued on the 
possible impact of incorporating Telecare into the package of non-residential social 
care services. It was generally acknowledged that this would require further 
consideration and should possibly be considered as part of a future review. 

 
5.11 At the second meeting Members agreed to consultation suggestions such as 

engaging with stakeholders via GAVO (Gwent Association of Voluntary 
Organisations). Contact was also made directly with associated organisations such 
as Age Cymru and Disability Rights UK. Subsequently, this consultation process 
proved challenging due to a lack of engagement from organisations. A Stakeholder 
Engagement Session scheduled for 27th February 2020 had to be cancelled due to a 
lack of interest. Planned face-to-face consultation sessions at events organised by 
Caerphilly People First also had to be cancelled following the national lockdown 
because of the Covid-19 pandemic in March 2020.      

 
5.12 Plans to restart the inquiry with an evidence gathering meeting via Microsoft Teams 

were made during Autumn, 2020. The Wales School for Social Care Research in 
Swansea, and Social Care Wales were both approached and a Social Care 
Management expert from the University of South Wales agreed to speak to the Task 
and Finish group on 30th November 2020. But this session had to be cancelled due to 
a family bereavement. 

 
5.13 Previously a cross party members task and finish group consisting of scrutiny 

members was established to examine the requirements and impact of charging for 
non-residential services, the services that had a charge and the application of 
charges and disregards. The findings of the task and finish group were presented to 
the Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee on 26th March 2013, and 
an annual increase of 10% per hour for home care and supported living and a annual 
increase of 20% per day for day care services was endorsed and recommended to 
Cabinet. These increases were to be reviewed after 5 years.  

 
5.14 On the 5th February 2019 a Non-Residential Social Services Charging report came 

before the Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee. It was endorsed 
and recommended to Cabinet that the level of charges for non-residential care for 
2019/20 and the subsequent financial year continue to increase by 10% per annum 
for home care and supported living and by 20% per annum for day care services and 
be subject to review by a Task and Finish Group thereafter.                   
          

5.15 Conclusion   
Due to disruption caused by the Covid-19 pandemic the Task and Finish group are 
not in a position to make recommendations on the application of charges for non-
residential care for the 2021/22 financial year. It is therefore recommended that 
Cabinet extends the current increase for this period and that the Task and Finish 

Page 13



Appendix 1 

inquiry continues in order to make recommendations for Cabinet consideration on the 
charge from 2022/23 onwards.   
 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 No related assumptions have been felt to be necessary in relation to this report.   

 
7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1       The operation of scrutiny is required by the Local Government Act 2000. The Local 

Government Wales Measure 2011 and subsequent Statutory Guidance include 
requirements to publicise the work of scrutiny committees. 

 
7.2 Corporate Plan 2018-2023.   

 
This report contributes to the following Corporate Well-being Objectives:  
 
Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in 
accordance with the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being. 

 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 This report contributes to the following Well-being goals: -  

 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 
 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  This report is for information purposes only, so the council’s full Equalities Impact 

Assessment process does not need to be applied.  
 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no financial implications with respect to this report.  
 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no personnel implications with respect to this report.  
 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 All responses from the consultations have been incorporated in the report. 

Page 14



Appendix 1 

 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 The Local Government Act 2000. 
 Social Care and Well-Being (Wales) Act 2015  
 
 
14. URGENCY (CABINET ITEMS ONLY) 
 
14.1 Non-urgent, but would need to be considered prior to setting the 2021/22 rates for 

non-residential care. 
 
 
 
Author:        Mark Jacques, Scrutiny Officer – jacqum@caerphilly.gov.uk  
 
Consultees: Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services 
 Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate 

Services 
 Jo Williams, Assistant Director Adult Services 
 Mike Jones, Financial Services Manager  
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/ Monitoring Officer 
 Lisa Lane, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer, 

Legal Services 
        Councillor Lyndon Binding, Chair of Social Services Scrutiny Committee 

Councillor Carmen Bezzina, Vice Chair of Social Services Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 16



 
 

SPECIAL CABINET – 17TH MARCH 2021 
 

SUBJECT:       PUBLICATION OF GENDER PAY GAP DATA 2020 – EQUALITY 
ACT 2010 (SPECIFIC DUTIES AND PUBLIC AUTHORITIES) 
REGULATIONS 2017 

 
REPORT BY:  LYNNE DONOVAN, HEAD OF PEOPLE SERVICES  
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to seek approval from Cabinet for the publication of the 

Authority’s gender pay gap written statement 2020.  
 

 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Under the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public Authorities) Regulations 2017, 

all organisations listed at Schedule 2 to the regulations that employ over 250 
employees are required to report annually on their gender pay gap from 2017. 

 
2.2 The provisions under these Regulations only apply to employees directly appointed 

and managed by the Council. Employees who are appointed and managed by school 
head teachers/Governing Bodies are not required to be included within the scope of 
the Council’s Gender Pay Gap Data. This reflects the unique employment legislation 
position whereby all schools employees are employed by the local authority, but 
decisions about the appointment and management of such employees are mostly 
discharged by head teachers/governing bodies, as appropriate. Caerphilly Schools will 
not be required to publish and report their own specific figures as no School employs 
more than 250 staff. 

  
2.3 The Council’s gender pay gap data is required to be published on our own website 

and a government website by 30 March each year.  The data must include the hourly 
pay, as both a mean figure, (identifying the difference between the average of men’s 
and women’s pay) and the median figure, (identifying the difference between the 
midpoints in the ranges of men’s and women’s pay).  Employers are encouraged to 
produce a written statement explaining the data.  

 
2.4 The Regulations further require the Council to publish the mean and median gender 

pay gap relating to bonus pay.  Cabinet will be aware that the Council does not offer 
piecework or bonus incentive schemes.  

 
 
 

Page 17

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5



3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Cabinet are asked to agree the written statement attached at Appendix 1 detailing 

gender pay gap data for publication on the Council’s website and the Government 
website on line using the gender pay gap reporting service. 

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To comply with the legislative requirements of the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties 

and Public Authorities) Regulations 2017. 
 
  
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The Council’s gender pay gap data is required to be published on an annual basis, 

once accepted. There is a requirement under the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties 
and Public Authorities) Regulations for this to be undertaken no later than the 30th 
March each year.  

 
5.2 There are six calculations to carry out, and the results must be published on the 

employer's website and a government website within 12 months. Where applicable, 
they must be confirmed by an appropriate person, such as a chief executive. 
 

5.3 Gender pay reporting is a different requirement to carrying out an equal pay audit. 
 

5.4 Employers have the option to provide a narrative with their calculations. This should 
generally explain the reasons for the results and give details about actions that are 
being taken to reduce or eliminate the gender pay gap. 
 

5.5 The written statement that is attached to this report at Appendix 1 contains the full 
details of the Council’s gender pay gap position that the Council is required to publish 
under legislation. 

 
5.6 With Cabinet’s agreement, the statement will be published on the Council’s Website 

and to the government on line using the gender pay gap reporting service 
(https://www.gov.uk/report-gender-pay-gap-data), and will be available for access by 
members of the public, press and interested pressure groups.       
 

5.7 The Council’s gender pay gap data and written statement is based on a high level 
snapshot of pay within the Council that shows the difference in the average pay 
between all men and women in our workforce.  In accordance with the Specific 
Duties and Public Authorities Regulations, the data includes all employees of the 
Council who were paid on 31 March 2020.   

 
5.8 Conclusion   

The Council’s gender pay gap does not stem from paying male and female 
employees differently for the same or equivalent work but is the result of roles in 
which male and females currently work and the salaries that these roles attract.  Our 
gender pay gap is reflective of the causes of gender pay gap at a societal level. The 
vast majority of posts in the lower quartile of data are part time posts.  These are the 
posts that continue to predominantly attract female applicants.  

 

Page 18

https://www.gov.uk/report-gender-pay-gap-data


6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 It is assumed within this report that whilst the Council continues to deliver diverse 

services with a very high concentration of part time posts in the lower earnings 
quartile, the opportunity to close this gap based on the number of females currently 
occupying said posts will be limited.  

 
 
7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1      The Gender Pay Gap links to our Strategic Equality Plan 2016 – 2020 and 2020 – 

2024.  The remuneration of employees is an integral feature of our People 
Management Strategy and frameworks and is a fundamental feature of the 
employment relationship. 

 
7.2 Corporate Plan 2018-2023.   

 
The Gender Pay Gap statement contributes towards the Corporate Well-being 
Objectives, as detailed below:     

 
Objective 2 - Enabling employment 
 
 

8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 Having considered the five ways of working, the Gender Pay Gap statement 

contributes to the following Well-being Goals: 
 

 A more equal Wales 

 A more prosperous Wales. 
 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.1  The data highlights a gender pay gap in favour of males.  In this data snapshot the 

mean gender pay gap difference is 8.04% and the median gap is 11.28%.  This does 
not mean that the Council is paying males and females differently for work deemed to 
be of equal value. The identification of a gender pay gap provides a trigger for further 
investigation about the reasons why the gap exists.   

 
9.2 The Council has committed to Equal Pay which is a more specific legal concept that 

deals with the pay differences between men and women carrying out comparable 
jobs. Equal Pay requires the scrutiny of information at the level of the individual 
employee to satisfy that there is equal pay for equal work.  The Council continues to 
use the GLPC job evaluation scheme and the HAY job evaluation scheme to satisfy 
this specific purpose.  

 
9.3 Last year’s figures were 8.3% and 10.3% respectively, representing a 0.26% 

reduction in the mean gender pay gap and an increase of 0.98% in the median. The 
Council is not paying males and females differently for work deemed to be deemed of 
equal value.  The Council continues to pay employees in line with its evaluated pay 
structures. 

 
9.4 The Council recognises the importance of equality not only in the Well-being of 

Future Generations Act but explicitly through its Strategic Equality Plans 2016-2020 

Page 19



and 2020-2024; its introduction of Equal Pay through Single Status and withdrawal of 
piecework and bonus incentive Schemes in 2009 and its introduction of the Living 
Wage Foundation minimum hourly rate in 2012.   

 
9.5 The gender pay written statement attached at Appendix 1 confirms the pay received 

by employees in March 2020 and reports on the facts of the current pay 
arrangements in place; therefore no specific Equalities Impact Assessment has been 
undertaken. Any previous changes to pay, terms and conditions that have led to this 
data have been assessed for equalities issues, as have other reports relating to 
CCBC employee pay issues such as the Living Wage report. 

 
9.6 In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its employees, the Council has 

complied with all relevant employment legislation, including: 
 

 The Equality Act 2010, including the requirements specifically in relation to 
Equal Pay 

 Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) 
Regulations 2000 

 The Agency Workers Regulations 2010 

 The Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006, 
where relevant;  

 The National Minimum Wage Act 1998. 
 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no financial implications arising from the requirement to publish the 

Council’s gender pay gap position. 
 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The personnel implications arising from the gender pay gap data and the measures 

taken and proposed to close the Council’s gender pay gap further are outlined in the 
written statement attached at Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 All comments from consultees have been included in the report. 
 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Local Government Act 1972  
 Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public Authorities) Regulations 2017 
 Localism Act 2011  
 Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011  

Local Government (Wales) Act 2015 
 
 
Author:       Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services  
 

Page 20



Consultees: Corporate Management Team 
 Cllr Colin Gordon, Cabinet Member for Corporate Services 
 Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer 
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer 
 Lisa Downey, HR Service Manager 
 Shaun Watkins, HR Service Manager 
 
 
Appendices:   
 
Appendix 1 Written Statement – Gender Pay Gap 2020 
 
 
 

Page 21



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 22



CAERPHILLY CBC 
 

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT 2020 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Under the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public Authorities) Regulations 2017, 
all organisations listed at Schedule 2 to the regulations that employ over 250 
employees are required to report annually on their gender pay gap.  Other 
organisations in the private and voluntary sectors with 250 or more employees need 
to comply with the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017. 
 
This data is required to be published on the Council’s website and a government 
website by 30 March each year.  The salary data within this statement is based on the 
snapshot date of 31 March 2020.  The regulations also require employers to calculate 
and publish a separate gender bonus pay gap report.  The Council however has no 
bonus scheme in place. 
 
The gender pay gap is a high-level snap-shot of pay within an organisation and shows 
the difference in the average pay between all men and women in a workforce.  This 
requires the examination of aggregate workforce data.  Where the data highlights a 
gender pay gap, this does not mean that the Council is paying males and females 
differently for work to be deemed of equal value.  The identification of a gender pay 
gap however provides a trigger for further investigation about the reasons why the pay 
gap exists. 
 
In contrast ‘equal pay’ is a more specific legal concept that deals with the pay 
differences between men and women carrying out comparable jobs.  It requires the 
scrutiny of information at the level of the individual employee to satisfy that there is 
equal pay for equal work.  The Council is confident that its gender pay gap does not 
stem from paying male and female employees differently for the same or equivalent 
work. 
 
GENDER PAY GAP DATA 
 
The employees included in this snapshot of data are predetermined by the Specific 
Duties and Public Authorities Regulations.  The Regulations apply the same definition 
of employee as the Equality Act 2010.  This is a broad definition which includes zero 
hours’ workers, apprentices and self-employed people. 
 
In the table below ‘Ordinary pay’ means basic pay; allowances; pay for leave; and shift 
premium pay.  It does not include overtime pay; redundancy pay; pay in lieu of leave, 
or non-monetary remuneration.  The Council does not offer piecework or bonus 
incentive schemes. 
 
The data is based on a snapshot date of 31 March 2020. 
 
Total Number of Employees included in this data: 6500 
Number of Females: 4576 (70.4%) 
Number of Males:  1924 (29.6%) 

Page 23



 

Mean Gender Pay Gap – Ordinary Pay 8.04 

Mean Hourly Rate – Ordinary Pay (Male/Female) (£13.07 / £12.02) 

Median Gender Pay Gap – Ordinary Pay 11.28 

Median Hourly Rate – Ordinary Pay (Male/Female) (£11.88 / £10.54) 

Mean Gender Pay Gap – Bonus pay in the 12 months ending 31 
March 2019 

 
0 

Median Gender Pay Gap – Bonus pay in the 12 months ending 
31 March 2019 

 
0 

The proportion of male and female employees paid a bonus in 
the 12 month period ending 31 March 2019 

Male           0 
Female       0 
 

 
Proportion of male and female employees in each quartile 
 

Quartile Female % (People) Male % (People) 

First Lower Quartile 
(£9.18 - £9.55) 

87.7  (1425) 12.3   (200) 

Second Quartile 
(£9.56 - £10.97) 

66.8  (1086) 33.2   (539) 

Third Quartile 
(£10.98 - £13.37) 

64.1   (1042) 35.9   (583) 

Fourth Quartile 
(£13.38 - £75.27) 

63.0   (1023) 37.0   (602) 

 
ORGANISATIONAL CONTEXT 
 
The data identifies that there are significantly more women than men occupying posts 
in every quartile of the data due to our predominantly female population.  
 
Proportionately, the data shows against the pure male population of the workforce that 
10.4% of the 1924 employed occupy posts in the lower quartile, 28.01% in the 2nd 
quartile, 30.3% in the 3rd quartile and 31.29% in the 4th quartile.  
 
This compares to 31.14% of the 4576 pure female population of the workforce that 
occupy posts in the lower quartile, 23.73% in the 2nd quartile, 22.77% in the 3rd quartile 
and 22.36% in the 4th quartile. 
 
We are confident that our gender pay gap does not stem from paying male and female 
employees differently for the same or equivalent work.  The gender pay gap is the 
result of roles in which male and females currently work and the salaries that these 
roles attract. 
 
Our gender pay gap is reflective of the causes of gender pay gap at a societal level. 
Research has shown that caring responsibilities and part time jobs continue to be 
shared/occupied unequally and that it is women who are predominantly drawn to part 
time jobs.  These can often be jobs that are below the employees’ skill levels, and offer 
fewer progression opportunities.  In this snapshot of data, whilst part time roles are 
supported across the whole of the Council’s staffing structure, it remains the case that 

Page 24



the vast majority of advertised part time posts and thus part time workers fall into the 
lower quartile of pay, for example within our Cleaning and Catering services. 
 
The opportunity to work part time in all other posts across the Council’s structure, is 
supported by an array of family friendly policies that offer men and women the 
opportunity to find a balance between work, leisure, family and caring responsibilities.   
 
Flexible working and agile working methodologies are intrinsic in supporting the 
reduction of the gender pay gap.  The Council offers numerous benefits aimed at 
making it easier for employees to balance home and work life commitments including 
agile working opportunities, flexible working, home working, career breaks, adoption 
leave, carers leave, a flexible working hours scheme, salary sacrifice and childcare 
voucher schemes, job share, leave of absence, parental, shared parental and paternity 
leave, part time working, shift/day swapping and term time only working opportunities.  
 
Whilst over a number of years, men have become more interested in/attracted to these 
policies, it remains the case that far more women than men have taken up the 
opportunities that these policies present. Whilst the Council continues to deliver 
diverse services with a very high concentration of part time posts in the lower earnings 
quartile, the opportunity to close our gender pay gap will be limited based on the pure 
number of women that currently occupy and continue to be attracted to these posts. 
 
In seeking to address the gender pay gap differential: 
 
The Council is transparently opposed to discrimination in any form and our Elected 
Members and employees work to ensure that everyone in the communities we serve 
have access to and benefit from the full range of services, regardless of their individual 
circumstances or backgrounds.  The Council is committed to doing all that it can to 
respect the diverse nature of those who live in, work in and visit the County Borough. 
 
The different areas covered by the Council’s legal requirements, called “protected 
characteristics” which include gender and other, wider equalities, human rights and 
language strands are covered in detail in the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan 
Strategic Equality Plan 2020 - 2024 
 
This link will take you to the Council’s fourth Strategic Equality Plan (2020 - 2024).  
This plan followed a pilot version in 2011-2012; four years of implementing a full plan 
from April 2012 - March 2016 and a further four years of implementing a full plan from 
April 2016 – March 2020. 
 
The Council has developed and will continue to develop policies, procedures and 
programmes of action to meet its legal and moral obligations in the area of equal 
opportunities and is committed to equal opportunities in all aspects of employment.  
The Council takes positive steps to reduce any disadvantage experienced by all 
individuals and groups.  It recognises that equalities contribute to the most effective 
utilisation of employee skills and abilities. 
 
We have invested heavily in creating a non-discriminatory, transparent pay and 
grading structure and conditions of service that fully comply with the Equal Pay Act 
and any other anti-discriminatory legislation. 

Page 25

http://sc-aptdken1/KENTICO/getattachment/a9f2dbd7-5013-443e-a6ae-9f0d8e15ca49/Strategic-Equality-Plan.aspx


 
In support of some of our lowest paid members of staff across all directorates, we pay 
our workforce the living wage foundation minimum hourly rate of pay, which was £9.30 
per hour on 31 March 2020. 
 
We are committed to ensuring equality of opportunity in all aspects of employment and 
service delivery as outlined in our Strategic Equality Plan and recognise that people 
have different needs, requirements and goals.  The Council works actively against all 
forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and mutual respect within and 
between our communities, residents, elected members, job applicants and workforce. 
 
We are committed to developing a healthy organisation, one which provides an 
environment that nurtures employees, provides opportunity for personal and 
professional development and recognises excellence. We will continue to develop our 
work life balance policies to cater for the varying and changing needs of our staff and 
thus, we are committed to modernising our practices, moving away from traditional 
models of delivery which restrict agility and flexibility.  Our ambitious transformation 
agenda will also support these values. 
 
We truly value our workforce and we put equality, inclusion and well-being at the very 
heart of everything we do. We continue to champion diversity and challenge conscious 
and unconscious bias in our decision making and we will strive to ensure all tiers are 
fairly represented across the organisation. 
 
Please take the time to read the progress that the Council has made across all aspects 
of our equalities work.   
 
 

Page 26


	Agenda
	3 Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.
	4 Adroddiad Dros Dro gan y Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen ar Daliadau Gofal dibreswyl.
	Atodiad 1

	5 Cyhoeddi Data Bwlch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau 2020 – Rheoliadau Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 (Dyletswyddau Penodol ac Awdurdodau Cyhoeddus) 2017
	Atodiad 1


